Water Advisory Committee: July 9, 2025

TOWN OF OAK RIDGE
WATER ADVISORY COMMITTEE SPECIAL CALLED MEETING
JULY 9, 2025 - 1:00 P.M.

OAK RIDGE TOWN HALL
MINUTES
Members present Staff present
Spencer Sullivan, Chair Bill Bruce, Town Manager
Brian Hall, Vice Chair Sandra Smith, Asst. Manager/Town Clerk

Francis Disney

Todd Hall (Alternate, sitting)

Paul Magnabosco (Alternate, sitting) Others present

Jim Harton, Council liaison (Non-voting member) John Greer, Envirolink

Members absent
Erin English

Invitees
Kevan Combs
Joe Brady

1)

2)

3)

WELCOME: Chair Spencer Sullivan called the meeting to order at 1:04 p.m.

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: Francis Disney motioned to approve the April 23, 2025
meeting minutes. Paul Magnabosco seconded, and the motion was passed unanimously (5-0).

DISCUSSION WITH DEVELOPERS

A. Proposed ordinance amendment to require connection to water mains

B. Proposed ordinance amendment to reduce community well requirement from 30 lots
to 15 lots

Sullivan introduced Kevan Combs and Joe Brady, who are developers in Oak Ridge, and shared
with them a brief recap of the history of the water system. He also explained that customers and
infrastructure are needed for any system to grow and be sustainable. He stated that the Water
Advisory Committee had recommended Council adopt two text amendments. The first, which
the Town had obtained from the Town of Stokesdale, had to do with proximity to a Town water
source. The second would require new subdivisions with 15 or more houses to install a
community water system and dedicate it to the Town. That number is a reduction from the
currently requirement of 30 lots. Sullivan said he had prepared documentation to provide
information on those costs.

Kevan Combs stated that he felt like a lot of discussion was needed due to the engineering and
infrastructure that would be needed for a 15-lot subdivision to have a community well system
that would be abandoned once the water line is built. In response to a question about when
water was going to be available, Combs was told the water line would likely be constructed in
12 to 18 months. He responded that it would be more advantageous for a developer planning a
subdivision now to simply suspend activities for 12 to 18 months before proceeding if the



Water Advisory Committee: July 9, 2025

community well system were going to be abandoned anyway, something that would keep
developers from wasting hundreds of thousands of dollars.

Joe Brady said the average cost to drill an individual well is anywhere from $8,000 to $20,000,
which is a cost to the builder.

Combs added that it takes 1 to 1% acres for a well lot, and the same infrastructure is required
for 15 lots as it is for 100.

Town Manager Bill Bruce responded that it would take 12 to 16 months to construct the water
line down NC 150 from Forsyth County, but it could take at least 20 years to have water lines to
service all of Oak Ridge. Combs responded that the Town would become elitist if developers are
required to continue to add additional costs to a house. He asked what would be the point to
install infrastructure if there was no timeline for when it would be connected to a water main.

Combs asked if it would be possible to install the pipes needed to connect to a water main
instead of installing a community well system, but Brady said he did not think it would make
sense to install infrastructure without a timeline because it might not see any use for 20 years,
causing it to disintegrate in the ground. Combs said the homeowners could be required to
connect to the Town water line, adding that tactic made more sense to him than requiring
installation of a community well for only 15 lots.

Bruce said he did not believe the Town could legally require property owners connect to Town
water, even if the developers had already installed the infrastructure. Combs countered that he
thought there was a legal way to require the connections by including it in the deed restrictions
and restrictive covenants. He reiterated that approach made much more sense than requiring a
developer to install a community well and lose a couple of acres on which to place the well
house.

Since Brady and Combs had opposed the requirement to change from 30 lots to 15, Todd Hall
asked them what they thought was the correct minimum number of lots would be if not 15.

Sullivan said the points he was trying to make had to do with developers installing a community
well system versus having the builders install individual wells. He offered data from various
subdivisions including Honeycutt Reserve, which showed the community well costs that were
divided amongst the 67 lots in the subdivision. Brady stated that community wells still have to
pass state water regulations.

Paul Magnabosco said the option of allowing the developers to install the infrastructure to
connect to a municipal water line versus installing a community well system was something the
Water Advisory Committee had never discussed. Sullivan agreed and added that the costs
would end up being borne by the homeowner either way. He said he could agree to the proposal
if the Town could make it work.

Combs then called his attorney on speaker phone to ask if homeowners in a subdivision with
individual wells could be required to connect to a Town water line in the future. His attorney,
Amanda Hodierne, said that the requirement could be included in the site plan, which would be
approved by the Town. Then a declaration could be added to homeowners association
documents or restrictive covenants that state something similar to “per the approved site plan,
it is required to connect to the Town water system.”



4)

5)

6)

Water Advisory Committee: July 9, 2025
Combs excused himself from the meeting.

Jake Letterman, a real estate agent for Berkshire Hathaway, estimated installing a community
well that cost $400,000 in a 15-lot subdivision would add $27,000 to $28,000 to the cost of
every lot. Brady added that the amount and quality of water that each well produces is also a
variable with which a developer has to contend.

Water Advisory Committee member Francis Disney, who is also a developer, said most
homeowners now also want to have enough water to irrigate. He said he thought Combs might
have a good idea. Brady said he was more comfortable with Combs’ suggestion than the
requirement to install a community well.

Bruce said state statutes could require a more definite timeframe regarding when a water line
will be available before a developer could be mandated to install infrastructure. He said a plan
showing when municipal water would be available in certain areas might be required.

Brady agreed that a plan showing when municipal water would be available that would not be
changed by future Councils was necessary. He added that most higher end neighborhoods in
Greensboro had a well that was used for irrigation.

Joe Brady excused himself from the meeting.

Magnabosco asked what steps the Town could take to build a system that follows state statutes
as well as the Town’s plan for water that will survive the length of time it takes to build a
system.

John Greer of Envirolink said the Town had the ability to set water rates that are reasonable and
justifiable without asking approval from the Utilities Commission. Mayor Kinneman asked if it
was possible to connect a home to the water main and charge the property owner a monthly
charge until it was paid. Greer said it was possible, but the Town could add it to the rate
structure as a surcharge for infrastructure in a particular area. He said the Town could possibly
create an infrastructure grant fund and the Town could recover those funds through surcharges
or infrastructure fees. It could be done through Town funds or an enterprise fund. Some
municipalities had designated, for example, one-quarter cent of tax dollars collected to go into
an infrastructure fund. Greer added that the mechanism for enforcing covenant restrictions is
through liens. He said other possible mechanisms for collections should be discussed with the
Town Attorney.

REVIEW/RECOMMENDATION OF WATER BROCHURE AND MARKETING PLAN: Assistant
Town Manager/Town Clerk Sandra Smith presented the water brochure, outlining changes that
had been made. With possible changes in the water line loop, Committee members agreed
additional changes to be brochure may be appropriate. Smith said that open house dates need
to be chosen and added to the brochure.

REPORT FROM ENVIROLINK: None

STAFF UPDATE

A. Water Tower. Construction is ongoing

B. Water Main. Town Manager Bruce left the meeting to attend the preconstruction meeting
for the water main.



Water Advisory Committee: July 9, 2025

C. Town Core Extension. Sullivan reported that Mayor Kinneman said he had an interesting
conversation with Philip Cooke about the possibility of connecting his commercial
properties in Oak Ridge to Town water when it is available. He said after the first phase of
construction (down NC 150 from Forsyth County to Town Hall), the plan discussed had
been to construct a water main loop to go from east on NC 150 from Linville Road to NC 68,
then turn south on NC 68 to Linville Road, then north on Linville Road back up to NC 150.
Cooke had said his properties use about 600,000 gallons per month of water and that, as
well as seasonal irrigation of athletic fields and use by the elementary school, would help
keep the water quality good without having to dump any. Brian Hall added that Cooke’s
commercial properties would be the equivalent of 131 residential customers and school use
would add water usage equal to an additional 18 to 20. Sullivan said depending on bids for
the water main, the Town could possibly have enough money left to extend the water line
down NC 150 to Cooke’s properties. Committee members agreed that this possibility could
completely change the initial plan for water.

Francis Disney left the meeting at 2:28 p.m.

7) PUBLIC COMMENTS
e Councilwoman Ann Schneider said it was good to hear from developers and some good
ideas may have been presented, but the Town needs to be who determines the
requirements and costs for doing business here. She said the developers said they
wanted a timeline for when municipal water will be available to all residents. She said
the Town would like that too, but the money is not yet available.

8) ADJOURN: Brian Hall made a motion to adjourn the meeting, and Paul Magnabosco seconded.
The motion was passed unanimously (4-0) and the meeting was adjourned at 2:36 p.m.

Spencer Sullivan
Chair



